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TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT on June 11, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. in Courtroom
15A of the United States District Court, Southern District of California located at 333
West Broadway, San Diego, California 92101. Plaintiffs Jacklyn Feist and Angelica
Zimmer will seek an order preliminarily approving the proposed class action settlement
with Defendant Petco Animal Supplies, Inc., pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23.

This motion will be based upon this Notice of Motion, the Memorandum of
Points and Authorities, the Declaration of Mark S. Greenstone filed concurrently
herewith, all pleadings and other papers on file or deemed to be on file at the time of
the hearing on this motion, and upon such other evidence and oral argument as may be
received at the time of the hearing on this motion.

Dated: April 20, 2018 GLANCY PRONGAY & MURRAY LLP
By: s/ Mark S. Greenstone
Lionel Z. Glancy
Marc L. Godino
Mark S. Greenstone
1925 Century Park East, Suite 2100
Los Angeles, CA 90067
Telephone: (310) 201-9150
Facsimile: (310) 201-9160

info@glancylaw.com
mgreenstone@glancylaw.com

Counsel for Plaintiffs and the Proposed
Settlement Class

NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION
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PROOF OF SERVICE BY ELECTRONIC POSTING

I, the undersigned say:

| am not a party to the above case, and am over eighteen years old. On April 20,
2018, | served true and correct copies of the foregoing document, by posting the
document electronically to the ECF website of the United States District Court for the
Southern District of California, for receipt electronically by the parties listed on the
Court’s Service List.

| affirm under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America
that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 20, 2018, at Los Angeles,
California.

s/ Mark S. Greenstone
Mark S. Greenstone
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Mailing Information for a Case 3:16-cv-01369-H-RNB Feist et al v.
Petco Animal Supplies, Inc. et al

Electronic Mail Notice List

The following are those who are currently on the list to receive e-mail notices for this case.

e Hali M. Anderson
handerson@wilsonturnerkosmo.com,pclark@wilsonturnerkosmo.com

e Marc L. Godino
mgodino@glancylaw.com,info@glancylaw.com,marc-godino-1414@ecf.pacerpro.com

e Mark S. Greenstone
mgreenstone@glancylaw.com,info@glancylaw.com

e Frederick William Kosmo , Jr
fkosmo@wilsonturnerkosmo.com,iekis@wilsonturnerkosmo.com

e Marissa L. Lyftogt
mlyftogt@wilsonturnerkosmo.com,knickerson@wilsonturnerkosmo.com

e Loleena Ansari May
Imay@wilsonturnerkosmo.com,kcastro@wilsonturnerkosmo.com

Manual Notice List
The following is the list of attorneys who are not on the list to receive e-mail notices for this case (who

therefore require manual noticing). You may wish to use your mouse to select and copy this list into your word
processing program in order to create notices or labels for these recipients.

e (No manual recipients)
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
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l. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiffs Jacklyn Feist and Angelica Zimmer, individually and on behalf of
the Class,' seek preliminary approval of the proposed Settlement with Defendant
Petco Animal Supplies, Inc. for alleged violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act.
The Settlement establishes a $1,200,000 non-reversionary Common Fund for the
benefit of two Classes. Disclosure Class Members (estimated at approximately
37,279 individuals) will receive a net settlement payment of about $20 each. A
small subset of Disclosure Class Members who are also Adverse Action Class
Members (estimated at approximately 52 individuals) will receive an additional
$150 each. As discussed below, these amounts are well within the range of similar
settlements that have been approved. Settlement payments will be made
automatically—there is no need to submit a claim.

Class Counsel forged this favorable resolution amidst a rapidly shifting legal
landscape for FCRA claims. As this Court is aware, Defendant moved to dismiss
this case for lack of Article III standing based on Spokeo v. Robins, 136 S.Ct. 1540
(2016). While this Court concluded that Plaintiffs had standing based on the
allegations in the Complaint, it specifically noted that Defendant’s standing

challenge could be renewed on summary judgment. In addition, Defendant both

' Unless otherwise explicitly defined herein, all capitalized terms have the same
meanings as those set forth in the Settlement Agreement, attached to the Declaration

of Mark S. Greenstone (“Greenstone Decl.”) as Ex. 1.

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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denied liability and asserted an advice of counsel defense based on advice received
from one of the most experienced FCRA defense lawyers in the country, whom
Defendant designated as a percipient expert witness. After taking into account these
and other risks attendant to continued litigation and engaging in extensive arm’s-
length negotiations with an experienced mediator, the Parties agreed to the proposed
Settlement. The proposed Settlement provides Class Members with excellent relief
that is well within the range of reasonableness and should be preliminarily
approved.
Il. STATUTORY BACKGROUND

Congress enacted the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”) in 1970 to protect
the “consumer’s right to privacy” by ensuring “the confidentiality, accuracy,
relevancy, and proper utilization” of consumer credit, personnel, insurance and other
information. 15 U.S.C. § 1681.> Recognizing the “vital role” that consumer reports
play in the modern economy, Congress sought to encourage those who handle the
sensitive information in those reports to “exercise their grave responsibilities” in a
way that “ensure[s] fair and accurate credit reporting.” § 1681(a)(4); Robinson v.
Equifax Info. Servs., LLC, 560 F.3d 235, 239 (4th Cir. 2009). The FCRA fosters

these purposes through a set of interlocking requirements concerning the

? Unless otherwise indicated, all statutory references are to Title 15 of the United

States Code.

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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procurement and use of consumer reports, and about how consumers must be
informed of their rights. See § 1681b.

This case arises under a provision of the FCRA that prohibits the procurement
of an applicant’s consumer report for employment purposes unless: (1) a clear and
conspicuous disclosure is provided in a separate document that contains no
extraneous information, and (2) the job applicant authorizes the procurement in
writing. §1681b(b)(2). The statute provides:

[A] person may not procure a consumer report, or cause a consumer

report to be procured, for employment purposes with respect to any

consumer, unless—

(1) a clear and conspicuous disclosure has been made in writing to the

consumer . . ., in a document that consists solely of the disclosure, that

a consumer report may be obtained for employment purposes; and

(i1) the consumer has authorized in writing (which authorization may

be made on the document referred to in clause (1)) the procurement of
the report by that person.

Id. This is often referred to as the “stand-alone” disclosure requirement. Absent
compliance with this requirement, it is illegal for a company to procure a job
applicant’s consumer report for employment purposes.

The FCRA also requires employers who use information in consumer reports
to follow certain notice procedures, provide certain disclosures, and wait a
reasonable period of time before taking an adverse action against a prospective,

current or former employee. § 1681b(b)(3). Specifically, the FCRA requires “pre-

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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adverse” action notice procedures be followed — I.e., consumers must be provided
with a copy of their report and summary of rights before adverse action is taken. Id.

Any person who willfully violates the FCRA may be liable for actual
damages or statutory damages of $100 to $1,000 per violation. § 1681n.
I11. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiff Angelica Zimmer is a former employee on whom Defendant
procured a consumer report during the application process. § 34-35.° Plaintiff
Jacklyn Feist applied for work with Defendant and attended two rounds of
interviews, after which she was provided with a work schedule. 9 30. When
Plaintiff Feist reported for her first day of work she was told that her background
check had not come through and was not allowed to begin working.  32. Plaintiff
Feist alleges that her background check had been received by Defendant, and that
she was not hired because it came back with an adjudication result indicating “Does
Not Meet Company Standards,” which was based on erroneous information. 31,
33. Plaintiff Feist further alleges that she was never provided with a pre or post-
adverse action notice, a copy of her consumer report or an opportunity to cure any

deficiencies therein in violation of § 1681b(b)(3). 9 33.

3 44 or §_ refers to the paragraphs contained in the proposed Second Amended
Complaint (“SAC”) filed concurrently herewith to conform the Class definition to

that contained in the Settlement Agreement.

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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Both Plaintiffs applied for work online via an application divided into a series
of tabs presented as web pages 99 30, 34, 36-37. During this process, Plaintiffs
were presented with a purported “Background Check Consent” which appears on a
screen with small-font wording in the middle of the page that the applicant scrolls
through by dragging a scrollbar on the right hand side. § 37. The wording contained
within the Background Check Consent scroll down is set forth in over thirty separate
paragraphs. Id. In addition to an advisement that a background check may be
conducted, Defendant’s Background Check Consent contains, inter alia, the
following extraneous information in violation of §1681b(b)(2):

° A broad release authorizing any person or entity to provide any

and all information regarding the applicant to Defendant’s consumer

reporting agency (“CRA”) or its agents (“Privacy Waiver).

° Seven paragraphs containing various information relating to the
laws of seven different states (“State Specific Notices”).

Based on the foregoing Plaintiffs allege separate claims for violation of the
FCRA'’s disclosure and adverse action requirements. It is estimated that Petco used
the form at issue to procure consumer reports on 37,279 individuals during the Class
Period (the Disclosure Class Members). It is estimated that 52 of these individuals
were also subject to an adverse action but did not receive a pre-adverse action
notification (the Adverse Action Class Members). (Greenstone Decl. 99)

Defendant denies all of the material allegations of the SAC and asserts its

compliance with the FCRA and numerous affirmative defenses. (Greenstone Decl.,

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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910; Answer to Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint [ECF No. 17].) Defendant
contends, among other things, that its disclosure form satisfied the FCRA’s
requirements and that it did not take adverse action against Plaintiff Feist. (1d.)
Defendant also asserts that because it relied on legal advice from outside counsel in
crafting the disclosure form that it is protected by the advice of counsel defense.
(1d.) Defendant further contends that even if Plaintiffs were to prove the alleged
FCRA violations, such violations were not willful and do not entitle Plaintiffs or
Class Members to recover any statutory or punitive damages or attorneys’ fees and
costs. (1d.) Finally, Defendant contends that Plaintiffs and Class Members have not
suffered any legally cognizable injury. (Id.)
IV. PROCEDURAL HISTORY & SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS

This case was commenced on May 5, 2016 in the California Superior Court
for the County of San Diego. On June 7, 2016, Defendant removed the case to this
Court on the basis of federal-question jurisdiction. Defendant moved to dismiss the
case shortly thereafter, arguing inter alia, that the federal court lacked subject-
matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ claims under Spokeo. This Court concluded that
“Plaintiffs have alleged sufficient injury to survive a motion to dismiss,” but further
stated that “Defendant may challenge Plaintiffs’ claims in a motion for summary
judgment if Plaintiffs cannot demonstrate a concrete injury in fact.” ECF No. 16.

Thereafter, the Parties began exchanging discovery. While meeting and

conferring regarding discovery, the Parties began to discuss exploring settlement on

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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a class-wide basis. The Parties agreed to mediate and selected a highly experienced
mediator, the Honorable Leo S. Papas (Ret.). Prior to mediation, the Parties
exchanged additional information concerning class size as well as the basis of
Plaintiffs’ claims and Petco’s defenses.

On December 22, 2017, the Parties engaged in an all-day mediation with
Judge Papas. After extensive negotiations weighing the relative strengths and
weaknesses of the case, the Parties agreed to accept the mediator’s proposal to settle
the action on a class-wide basis for $1,200,000. The Parties executed a
Memorandum of Understanding outlining the terms of settlement. The Parties did
not discuss counsel’s fees or the Class Representatives’ Enhancement award until
after agreeing upon Class Member’s relief. (Greenstone Decl. §8)

During the first week of April 2018, the Parties executed a formal Settlement
Agreement (Greenstone Decl., Ex. 1). Plaintiffs now file this unopposed motion
requesting that the Court certify the proposed Classes for settlement purposes only
and preliminarily approve the Parties’ Settlement.

V. THESETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
A. Overview Of The Settlement Terms

The Parties have agreed to a full and complete Settlement of this matter that
provides relief for members of the proposed Class, which is defined as:

All persons regarding whom Defendant procured or caused to be
procured a consumer report for employment purposes during the period
from May 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015 (also sometimes
referred to as the “Disclosure Class” or “Disclosure Class Members™).

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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Included in the Settlement Class is a subclass consisting of those
against whom Petco took an adverse action subsequent to procuring a
consumer report and did not receive a pre-adverse action notification
letter (also sometimes referred to as the “Adverse Action Class” or
“Adverse Action Class Members”).

(Agreement, 1.C.) Based on data from Petco’s records, the Parties believe that the
Disclosure Class contains approximately 37,279 members, 52 of which are also
Adverse Action Class Members. (Greenstone Decl. §9) Class Members who do not
opt out will release all claims that are or could have been brought by Plaintiffs based
upon the facts alleged in the SAC. (Agreement, [.T.)

In consideration for the release of the Class Members’ claims, Petco will pay
a total of $1,200,000 into a common settlement fund for the benefit of the Class.
(Agreement, II.A.) In no circumstance will any portion of this fund revert to Petco.
(Id. II.B.) After any Court-approved deductions for attorneys’ fees, expenses, claims
administration costs, and Class Representative enhancements, the remaining fund
will be distributed pro rata to all Class Members who do not exclude themselves
from the Class. (Id.) Should any funds remain after the close of the check
negotiation period, then those residual funds shall be distributed to a mutually
agreeable cy pres recipient. (Id. I1.B.5.).

The Parties have selected KCC, a well-respected, independent third party, to
serve as the Settlement Administrator. (Agreement, [.U.) The Settlement
Administrator will handle the distribution of direct notice to members of the
Settlement Class, mailing settlement payments, providing phone support for

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
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questions from Class Members, and other responsibilities associated with
administering the Settlement. (Id. III1.C.) Administration costs are estimated to be
approximately $80,000 which will be deducted from the Common Fund. (Id. IL.E.)

B.  Form of Notice

All Class Members will be mailed a Notice of Class Action Settlement (the
“Notice”), a copy of which is attached to the Settlement Agreement. (Agreement,
Ex. A). Prior to mailing the Notice to all Class Members, the Settlement
Administrator shall update all addresses using the National Change of Address
System. (Agreement, III.C.1.) The Notice informs Class Members of information
about the Settlement, including the monetary terms, the nature of the claims and the
release, and Class Members’ right to object to or opt-out. (Id., Ex. A) Further, the
Notice will inform Class Members how to obtain additional information about the
Settlement. (Id.) The Notice provides a toll-free telephone number to contact the
Settlement Administrator. (Id.) In the event that a Notice is returned to the
Settlement Administrator, the Settlement Administrator will attempt to locate
another address for the Class Member. (Id., III.C.3.) The content of the proposed
Notice is reasonable and appropriate, and Plaintiffs request that the Court approve
dissemination of the Notice.

C.  Opt-Outs And Objections

The Notice will inform all Class Members of their right to opt-out of or object

to the Settlement, as well as the associated procedures and deadlines. Class

Memorandum Supporting Motion for Preliminary Approval
Case No. 3:16-cv-01369-H-DHB 9




Case

8:16-cv-01369-H-RNB Document 34-1 Filed 04/20/18 PagelD.348 Page 16 of 34

Members who opt-out must send the Settlement Administrator written notice
indicating their desire to opt-out by the Request for Exclusion/Opt Out Deadline.
The opt-out request must contain the person’s name, address, telephone number,
social security number. (Agreement, III.E.) To object, a Class Member must timely
file a written copy of the objection with the Court. Any Class Member who objects
must set forth in his or her objection the reason(s) for objecting to the Settlement,
the objector’s name, address, telephone number, and whether the objector intends to
appear at the Final Approval Hearing (with or without counsel). The objection must
be signed and include the case name and number.

D.  Attorneys’ Fees, Costs, And Class Representative Enhancements

The Settlement Agreement contemplates Class Counsel petitioning the Court
for attorneys’ fees in an amount not to exceed $300,000 (representing 25% of the
Common Fund), as well as documented, customary costs incurred by Class Counsel
up to $15,725.26. (Id. 11.D.) Class Counsel will petition the Court for an
Enhancement award for the Class Representatives in the amount of $5,000 each. (Id.
I1.C.1.) Any approved awards will be deducted from the Common Fund prior to
distribution to Class Members. Class Counsel will formally petition the Court for
these amounts. Neither the attorneys’ fees nor the proposed Enhancement awards
were negotiated before the other settlement terms were agreed upon, and neither

final approval, nor the size of the Common Fund, are contingent upon the full
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amount of any requested fees or approval of the Enhancement awards. (Greenstone

Decl. 48)

E.  Estimated Allocation Of The Common Fund

The Parties estimate that the Common Fund will be allocated as follows:

Net Common Fund (Payments to the Class Members) $793,274.74
Class Representative Enhancement as Awarded by the Court $10,000.00
Attorneys’ Fees as Awarded by the Court $300,000.00
Costs of Suit as Awarded by the Court $15,725.26
Administrative Costs $81,000.00
Common Fund $1,200,000.00

VI. ARGUMENT
Under Rule 23(e), “[t]he claims . . . of a certified class may be settled . . . only
with the court’s approval.” FED. R. Civ. P. 23(e). This process requires the within
Court to balance the following:
the strength of the plaintiffs’ case; the risk, expense, complexity, and
likely duration of further litigation; the risk of maintaining class action
status throughout the trial; the amount offered in settlement; the extent
of discovery completed and the stage of the proceedings; the
experience and views of counsel; the presence of a governmental
participant; and the reaction of the class members to the proposed
settlement.
Hanlon v. Chrysler Corp., 150 F.3d 1011, 1026 (9th Cir. 1998). Before a court
approves a settlement, it must conclude that the settlement is “fundamentally fair,

adequate, and reasonable.” In re Uber FCRA Litig., No. 14-cv-05200-EMC, 2017

WL 2806698, at *4 (N.D. Cal. June 29, 2017) (citing cases).
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l. THE SETTLEMENT TERMS ARE FAIR, ADEQUATE, AND
REASONABLE

A.  The Proposed Settlement Was Reached After Arm’s-Length
Negotiations With An Experienced Mediator

The assistance of an experienced mediator in the settlement process confirms
that the settlement is non-collusive.” Satchell v. Fed. Express Corp., No. C03-2659
SI, 2007 WL 1114010, at *4 (N.D. Cal. April 13, 2007). A non-collusive
settlement, negotiated with the involvement of a respected mediator, is entitled to “a
presumption of fairness.” In re Toys “R” Us-Del., Inc. FACTA Litig., 295 F.R.D.
438, 450 (C.D. Cal. 2014); see also NEWBERG ON CLASS ACTIONS § 11.41.

The proposed Settlement Agreement here is the product of arms’-length
negotiations conducted with oversight and assistance of the Honorable Leo S. Papas,
a retired Magistrate Judge for this District. (Greenstone Decl., 47) Judge Papas is
widely respected by Courts throughout the Ninth Circuit and has negotiated
numerous settlements that have been approved as fair, adequate and reasonable.
See, e.g., See Knutson v. Schwan's Home Serv., Inc., No. 3:12-cv-00964-GPC, 2014
WL 3519064, at *3 (S.D. Cal. July 14, 2014) (preliminarily approving arm’s-length
settlement mediated in front of Judge Papas). Moreover, the parties negotiated class
counsel’s entitlement to attorneys’ fees and Plaintiffs’ service awards separately,
after the material terms of the proposed Settlement Agreement. (Greenstone Decl.,
8) Based on these factors, the Settlement is entitled to a presumption of fairness.

See In re Toys “R” Us FACTA Litig., 295 F.R.D. at 450 (finding a presumption of
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